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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

The one and one-half story building is divided into four rowhouse dwellings, 
with partial cellars. It is placed on the property lines at the corner of 
Steins and Pennsylvania, fronting on Steins, with partially fenced backyards 
extending to an a 11 ey. Entry doors are separated from the s i dew a 1 k by single 
blocks of cut limestone serving as a steps. 

,he units originally were two rooms deep on the ground floor. An L-shaped 
kitchen and bathroom addition of frame construction was added later. The 
cellar, entered from an outside areaway at the rear, is below the rear room 
only. The partially finished attic room is reached by an enclosed stair set 
crosswise between the first and second rooms. 

The roof is gable-shaped, with dormer windows centered on the north (front) 
side of the western three units. There is also one unit with a dormer on the 
south side. The easternmost unit has no dormers but has an attic window centered 
on the gable end, and two windows below on the ground floor. 

Walls are rubble limestone masonry, roughly squared and coursed. Walls on the 
main floor are approximately 18" thick. Foundations are approximately 24" 
thick. There is no "water table course," and floors are only two steps above 
grade. 

The front facade of the east unit has one window on each side of the door. The 
other three units each have one window and one door, approximately equally 
spaced along the facade. There is a distinct vertical joint between the east 
end unit and the others, with a break in masonry coursing, suggesting that the 
end unit was built at a different time. The stone and workmanship and other 
details including the cornice are identical, however, so they may have been 
built by the same craftsmen within a short time. 

Roofing is recent asphalt roll roofing over handsplit wood shingles which are 
13" to 15" long and were 1/3 exposed. The shingles are on l" boards from 4" 
to 19" wide, on 2" x 6" (net) sawn wood rafters at 24" o.c. Rafters are butt­
joined at the peak without a ridge board, and there is a cross-tie 1-1/8" x 5". 
Square-head cut nails were used. Dormers are framed on single rafters with 
2" x 3-1," and 4" x 4" studs and 4" x 4" top plates. 6" weatherboards cover their 
sides. Triangular cut boards form the peak. Rafters bear on tops of the front 
and rear stone walls, which extend 2'-10" above the attic floor. 

The original plan was two equal-sized rooms in the ground floor, approximately 
16'-4" wide and 14'-6" deep, with the doorways to one side and the attic stair 
in the second room crosswise along the center wall. There is one brick chimney 
in each room originally for wood stoves and now are used for gas space heaters. 
The chimneys measure 18" square in the attic. The main floor ceiling height is 
9'-10". 
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An L-shaped wood frame addition has been added behind each unit. Exterior 
sheathing is covered by asphalt shingles. The present owner thinks that the 
additions were added by his qrandfather. H1ey appear in all photographs, the 
earliest dating from 1932. The additions contain kitchens and bathrooms, and 
are presently being modernized with new vinyl tile floorin~, plastic laminate 
wall panelling, suspended acoustical tile ceilings, new plumbinq fixtures and 
appliances and fiberglass shower stalls. Originally the houses rlid not have 
indoor toilets. 

Ceiling and wall finish in the original qround floor is plaster, with a plain 
l'' x 6'' wood base. Floors are pine, approximately 3'' wide. The attic is 
unfinished except for flooring. There is evidence that the attics were occupiei. 

Electric light pendant fixtures are centered in each room. Hiring is concealed. 
Knobs remain in the attic from old knob and tube wiring, but that wirinq has 
been replaced with fabric-insulated wire. 

The cellar is under the original back room, 13'-6" long. It has a dirt floor 
and stone walls. Party wall of stone does not extend full height; joists 
continue across it except for stone chimney base. Floor joists above span from 
center cross wall to back wall (north-south). Joists are 2-1/8" x 10" at 22" 
o.c. with x-bridging of rough splints at mid-span. Cellar entry is through a 
side hinged cellar door at grade behind each unit. Gas meter and telephone 
cable are in cellar. 

Front and east end windows have stone masonry, flat topped, shallow segmental 
arched heads. Sills are a" wood. Casements are 2" wood stock. Sash have been 
replaced with aluminum 6/6 light double-hung sash. Shutters and shutter 
hardware have been removed. Louvered shutters are visible in the 1932 photograph, 
but these may not be original. Many early Missouri German houses had panel-type 
shutters. 

Rear windows in the original stone wall have wood lintels as well as sills. 
Lintels extend 5" into the masonry on each side. One window at the rear of 
202 appears to have original 6/6 light double-hunq wood sash. 

Windows are set back only l" to 2" from face of masonry, so there are deep 
reveals inside the thick stone walls. Taos of casements are rounded to fit 
the arched masonry. 

' 
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An undecorated wood cornice extends across the front, projecting out about one 
foot. A simple ogee shaoed molding meets the cap of the cornice. A gutter is 
built into the cornice. The rear of the original construction has a plain 1'' x 
10" fascia board against the wall with no roof projection, and a sheet metal 
gutter attached. 

Front doors are new solid core veneered doors or recent wood panel doors. Doors 
have 3-light transoms above, tyrical of many early Missouri German houses. 
Casings are original, but no original hardware rerr1c1ins. 

Chimneys are small, square, brick, projecting about two feet above the roof. 
Each unit has two, symmetrically placed in one ')able end. Dormer ends are 
trimmed in plain boards with a delicate classical pediment moldino contrasting 
nicely with the rugged r.iasonry below. Dormer sash is 6/6 lif!ht wood double­
hung, probably original. The original donner siding has hPen rovered with 
tarpaper roofing and asphalt roll roofing. 

Interior doors and windows are cased with plain painted woodv:ork with a federa, 
style pedimented top. 

Exterior masonry is well tuckpointed, with gable end and rear having flush joints, 
and front having a projecting bead joint. The stone itself is a white to light 
grayish yellow or green limestone. Some is cherty but most contains an abundance 
of marine fossils includinq bryozoa and crinoid stems. It is probably from 
the Mississippian period, Osage group, Burlington or Fern Glen Formation. It 
was quarried from the natural river bluffs a few blocks east between Koeln and 
Steins Streets. 

Very little alteration has taken place on the exterior, other than re-roofing 
and the rear kitchen additions, which do not detract significantly from the 
original structure. The rowhouse has pleasing architectural proportions, with 
its relatively large windows and modest size contrasting with its substantial 
stone construction. It retains its original character, as does much of the 
surrounding area. 
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The stone rowhouse on Steins Street at Pennsylvania is significant as a rare example 
of vernacular architecture in Missouri. It is one of the best preserved examples in 
the St. Louis area of the typical one-and-one-half story 19th century house type in 
stone masonry construction. The stone ffiasonry is rough, but skillfully executed. 
The regularity of coursing, straightness of walls, and arched openings are evidence 
that trained masons built the houses. 

The placement of the front next to the street, and division of the building into 
rowhouse units is typical of 19th century town architecture, although the rubble 
stone masonry and one-and-one-half story f~rm were common to farmhouses, far from 
sources of more fashionable brick masonry. 

The date of construction has not been firmly established, but is sometimes given as 
1848-1850, shortly after the first German immigrants settled "Stein's Town" near the 
small Creole town of Carondelet, or "Vide Poche." 

Carondelet, first known as Louisburg, was founded in 1767 by Clement Delor, a 
Frenchman, under a Spanish land grant. It remained a small and poor village 
inhabited largely by Creoles until after the Louisiana Purchase. The population 
was 184 in 1799. In 1832 Carondelet became a borough tovm and was surveyed by 
Eiler. What is now Steins Street was the southern boundary of the town, with 
common pastures beyond. What is now Pennsylvania Avenue was ca 11 ed Second Street. 

Jaccb Steins arrived in 1843 and settled about a ha 1 f-mi 1 e from the French settl emcnt. 2 
At that time, arriva"is from Genr.any were rar2. f:e became the first "immigrc;tion 
agent" in CarondeleL, inducing in1migrants from Cologne and the lower Rhine Valley 
to settle, through a German travel society. This was at the height of German 
emigration to Missouri, insp"ired in part by a "vivid, even lyrical" account published 
in Gennany about two years reside nee 'in Missouri by Gottfried Duden, "a respected 
jurist, outlining the advantate3 of living in that state and the opportunities for 
creating new lives in America." By this time, Carondelet was also receiving large 
numbers of Irish immigrants. 

The stone houses represent an attempt to keep alive the traditional way of 1 iving 
and building, although it is probably impossible to identify any particular material 
traits si nee the style is so simple and loca 1 circumstances of materi a 1 s, needs, and 
contact with other materialities had great influence on the architecture. Both 
Gennans and Irish were active in quarrying and stone construction in Carondelet, but 
the 1850 census discloses that 90% of the stonemasons were Irish. 
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MO 

Photographer: Donald T. Brubeck  
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Photographed: May 1979  

 
Description of Photograph(s) and number, include description of view indicating direction of camera: 
 
1 of 5. 200-204 Steins St., view from NE.  
2 of 5. 200-204 Steins St., view from SE. 
3 of 5. 200-204 Steins St., view from S. 
4 of 5. 200-204 Steins St., view from NE. 
5 of 5. 200-204 Steins St., view from NE. 














